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Dear Matthew 

 
Proposed Bulky Goods Development (Pretty Girl Site) 

728 – 750 Princes Highway, Tempe 
Assessment of Proposed Deferred 
Commencement Condition No. 1 

 
 
I prepared the Traffic Impact Assessment for the subject development and I have 
extensive experience in assessment of landuse traffic generation characteristics.  I 
undertook the survey and assessment studies for 6 landuses for the former Road and 
Traffic Authority and the resulting criteria is incorporated in the current RMS Guide to 
Traffic Generating Development. 
 
I have considered the recently published RMS Technical Direction 2013-04 and have 
presented a number of critiques to RMS in relation to this document (see Appended).  
The response from RMS has been that: 
 

• The “averaged” results provided in the TDT should only be taken as a guide 

• Assessment of a specific circumstance should be undertaken adopting the 
characteristics of a most comparable development 
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The most relevant criticism I have of the RMS TDT methodology is that it averages 
uses with extremes of magnitude and differing usage characteristics and examples of 
this are: 
 
Industrial Estates 

Erskine Park 326.9 ha averaged with Helensburg 0.6 ha 
 

Hardware 
 Bunnings 14,000m2 averaged with Mitre 10 1,600m2 
 
In relation to the assessment undertaken by RMS for Bulky Goods use the gross floor 
area of the chosen sites ranges from some 600m2 to 14,850m2 (Table 2-3 of Study) 
and the site peak traffic generation ranges from 26 vtph to 232 vtph.  It is apparent 
that: 
 

• None of the sites incorporated in the RMS Study have any resemblance to the 
size and ‘make up’ of the proposed Tempe development 
 

• The site peak traffic generation of the largest site occurred at 7.30pm on a 
Thursday and 2.30pm on a Saturday 
 

 
Apart from the Auburn Harvey Norman site the other sites ranged from 600m2 to 
6,029m2 with an average of some 2,700m2 and all the sites were single tenancies.  
The proposed development however is for some 19,600m2 with multiple tenancies and 
the preeminent implications are that: 
 

• Traffic generation (vtph/100m2) decreases as the floorspace increases 

• Traffic generation decreases as a result of dual/multiple patronage (ie visitation 
to various tenancies) 

 
It is an indisputable fact that: 
 

• The RMS ‘averaging’ does not provide appropriate criteria for assessment of the 
proposed development 

• The Bulky Goods sites in the RMS Study are not comparable to the proposed 
development 

 
In the extreme, the 600m2 Retravision site at Springwood (not in the Metropolitan Area 
anyway) with a total of 13 parking spaces presents no resemblance or comparison 
whatsoever with the proposed development and the traffic generation outcome (which 
is likely to reflect no bonifide parking and traffic movements) seriously skews the 
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averaged results.  If the 2 Metropolitan sites (albeit single occupant) are averaged 
without the Springwood site the results for “Site Peak” generation would be: 
 
 
 Weekday PM 1.49vtph/100m2 (not 2.44) 
 Weekend 2.54vtph/100m2 (not 3.75) 
 
Similarly the results for the “Network Peak” generation would be: 
 
 Weekday PM 1.01vtph/100m2 ( *  ) 
 Weekend 1.95vtph/100m2 (not 2.24) 
 

* Springwood site not open 

 
The rates for the network peak adopted in the TTPA study reflect the above results as 
follows: 
 
 Weekday PM 1.0vtph/100m2 
 Weekend 2.0vtph/100m2 
 
These details are identified on the extracts from the RMS report attached and the 
relevance in relation to “site peak” traffic conditions is reflected in the volumes on the 
Princes Highway at the respective times as follows: 
 

 Total Highway Flows * 
Network Peak  Thursday 5-6pm 5,014 
Site Peak 
 

Thursday 7-8pm 2,507 (-2,507vph) 

Network Peak  Saturday 12-1pm 3,911 
Site Peak Saturday 2-3pm 3,566 (- 345vph) 

 
* Data from RMS Count Station on Princes Highway and Cooks River 

 
 
The sites peak for Bulky Goods use can therefore be reasonably accepted as being 
some 0.5vtph per 100m2 more than that of the network peak.  Therefore the additional 
generation (ie over the network peak) of 19,600m2 is only 98vtph when there is 
between 345 and 2,507 less vehicle movements on the highway at these times.  It is 
quite clear therefore that the network peak circumstances is the “worst case” in terms 
of capacity/performance and there is no requirement to undertake a more detailed 
assessment of the site peak circumstances.  
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It is also noted that RMS/Sydney Regional Development Committee response did not 
raise this issue and accepted the Traffic Assessment provided with the Development 
Application. 
 
 
There are numerous existing Bulky Goods developments in the Metropolitan Area 
which are very comparable to the proposed development.  If there is still to be a 
Deferred Commencement Condition requiring assessment of the ”site peak” traffic 
generation it should be based on: 
 

• Agreement with RMS in relation to a comparable site/s to be surveyed 
• RMS being the authority responsible for assessing the analysis, not Council, as 

intersections on the highway are RMS responsibility 
 
In relation to the electrical kiosks these have been relocated to the western side of the 
access and the turning path diagrams provided in my letter of 15.2.13 (attached) quite 
clearly confirm that there is no issue in relation to “potential” vehicle conflict. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

  
Ross Nettle 
Director 
Transport and Traffic Planning Associates 
 
Encl 
 








































